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Independent Auditor’s Report 

To The Honorable Mayor and City Commission 
City of Gretna, Florida 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of 
Gretna, Florida, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2017, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise City of Gretna, Florida’s basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

City of Gretna, Florida’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 
these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express 
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinions. 
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Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Gretna, Florida, as of 
September 30, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash 
flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America.,

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that 
the management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 
4-12 and 54-55, respectively,  be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Management has omitted the schedule of proportionate share of net pension liability, the 
schedule of changes in net pension liability and related ratios, the schedule of employer 
contributions, and the schedule of investment returns, that accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to 
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial 
statements is not affected by this missing information. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements 
that collectively comprise City of Gretna, Florida’s basic financial statements. The  
accompanying supplementary combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements 
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. 

The accompanying supplementary combining and individual nonmajor fund financial 
statements is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to 
the underlying 2



accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to 
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
accompanying supplementary combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements is 
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 
30, 2019 on our consideration of City of Gretna, Florida’s internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, 
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering City of Gretna, Florida’s internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance. 

Tallahassee, Florida 
April 30, 2019 
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City of Gretna, Florida 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017 

This discussion and analysis of the City of Gretna (the “City”) financial statements is designed to introduce the basic financial 
statements and provide an analytical overview of the City’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 
2017. The basic financial statements are comprised of the government- wide financial statements, fund financial statements, 
and footnotes. As management of the City of Gretna, Florida (City), we offer readers of the City's financial statements this 
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017. 
Please read it in conjunction with the accompanying basic financial statements beginning on page 14. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

o The City's total net position at September 30, 2017 was $6.408 million as compared to $6.529 million for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2016, a decrease of $.121 million.

o The total revenues from all sources was $2.319 million for fiscal year ended 2017 as compared to
$2.414 million for fiscal year ended 2016.  The decrease in revenue is primarily due to a decrease in operating
grants and contribution by $.095 thousand.

o During the year, the City's governmental and business activity expense exceeded revenue by $.206 million for
fiscal year ended 2017 as compared to the governmental and business activity revenues exceeding expenses by
$.902 million for fiscal year ended 2016. Expenditures exceeded revenues due to unanticipated employee benefit
cost, accounting consulting, and repairs and maintenance expenses.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The three components of the financial statements are: 

(1) Government-wide financial statements which include the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities.
These statements provide information about the activities of the City.

(2) Fund financial statements tell how these services were financed in the short term, as well as what remains for future
spending. Fund financial statements also report the City's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements
by providing information about the City's most significant funds.

(3) Notes to the financial statements.
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City of Gretna, Florida 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017 

REPORTING ON THE CITY AS A WHOLE 

Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities (Government-wide) 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report information about the City and about its 
activities in a way that helps answer how well the current year’s activities contributes to the overall financial well-being. 

These statements include all assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector 
companies. All the current year's revenues and expenses are considered, regardless of when cash is received or 
paid. 

These two statements report the City's net position and changes therein. Net position, the difference between assets 
and liabilities, is one way to measure the City's financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or 
decreases in net position are an indicator of whether the financial health is improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities present information about the following: 

Governmental activities - All the City's basic services are governmental activities, including general 
government, community development, public safety, public services, library, and recreation. Property taxes, 
sales taxes, utility taxes, and franchise fees finance most of these activities. 

Proprietary activities/Business type activities - The City charges a fee to customers to cover all the costs of 
the services provided. 

REPORTING ON THE CITY'S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds - not the City. Some 
funds are required to be established by State law. However, management establishes other funds, which aid in the 
management of money for purposes or meet legal responsibilities associated with the usage of certain taxes, grants, and 
other money. The City maintains two types of funds, governmental, and proprietary, and use different accounting 
approaches as explained below. 

Governmental funds - Most of the City's basic services are reported in governmental funds. Governmental funds 
focus on how resources flow in and out, with the balances remaining at year end that are available for spending. 
These funds are reported using an accounting method called the modified accrual accounting method, which measures 
cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide 
a detailed short-term view of the City's general government operations and the basic services it provides. 
Governmental fund information shows whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the 
near future to finance the City's programs. The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 
16-19 of this report.
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City of Gretna, Florida 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017 

Proprietary funds - The City's proprietary funds are the following: sewer, electric, water, gas, refuse, landfill and 
telecommunications, which charges customers for the services it provides. These services are generally reported in 
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of 
Net Position and the Statement of Activities. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 
20-23 of this report.

These funds are presented on a governmental fund financial statement and a proprietary fund financial statement format. 
The City’s major funds are presented in separate columns on the fund financial statements. The definition of a 
major fund is one that meets certain criteria set-forth in GASB 34. The funds that do not meet the criteria of a major 
fund are considered non-major funds and are combined into a single column on the fund financial statements. Table 1 
below summarizes the major features of the basic financial statements. 

Table 1: Major Features of the Basic Financial Statements 
Government-wide Fund 
Financial Statements Fund Financial Statements 

Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds 

Scope Entire City government 
(except fiduciary funds) and 
the City’s component unit 

Activities of the City that are 
not proprietary or fiduciary 

Activities of the City that 
are operated similar to 
private businesses 

Required 
financial 
statements 

• Statement of Net Position
• Statement of Activities

• Balance Sheet,
• Statement of Revenues,

Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances

• Statement of Net 
Position

• Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes
in Net Position and
Statement of Cash Flows

Accounting 
basis 
and 
measurement 
focus 

Accrual accounting and 
economic resources focus 

Modified accrual accounting 
and current financial 
resources focus 

Accrual   accounting   and 
economic resources focus 

Type of 
asset/liability 
information 

All assets and liabilities, both 
financial and capital, and 
short-term and long-term, 
and deferred outflows and 
deferred inflows. 

Only assets expected to be 
used up and liabilities that 
come due during the year or 
soon thereafter; no capital 
assets included. 

All assets and liabilities, 
both financial and capital, 
and short-term and long- 
term and deferred outflows 
and deferred inflows. 

Type of 
inflow/outflow 
information 

All revenues and expenses 
during the year, regardless of 
when cash is received or 
paid. 

• Revenues for which cash is
received during or soon
after the end of the year

• Expenditures when goods or
services have been received
and payment is due during
the year or soon thereafter.

All revenues and expenses 
during the year, regardless 
of when cash is received or 
paid. 
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City of Gretna, Florida 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to the full understanding of the data 
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. Refer to Note 1 to the financial statements for 
more detailed information on the elements of the financial statements. 

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Statement of Net Position 

The following comparative table summarizes the City’s net position as of September 30, 2017 and 2016: 
 

Total Activities Total Activities 
2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017

164,235$      $        46,123 2,039,612$      1,896,132$      2,203,847$      1,942,256$      
3,283,213 3,399,953 4,876,963 4,763,617 8,160,176 8,077,576

61,193 137,603 26,225 321,075 87,418 458,678
3,508,641$    $    3,583,680 6,942,800$      6,980,824$      10,451,441$     10,478,510$     

618,623$      95,452$        1,206,595$      841,479$         1,825,218$      936,931$         
1,813,536 1,861,851 91,555 116,774 1,905,091 1,938,270

133,860 347,522 57,369 810,884 178,402 1,158,406

2,566,019$    $    2,546,939 1,355,519$      $      1,826,468 3,908,711$      4,033,607$      

3,148,122$    3,304,501$    3,885,278$      3,948,019$      7,033,400$      7,252,520$      
13,452 21,213 161,241 161,515 174,693 182,728

(2,218,952) (2,288,973) 1,540,762 1,044,822 (678,190) (1,026,522)
942,622$      $    1,036,741 5,587,281$      5,154,356$      6,529,903$      6,408,726$      

Table 2
Statement of Net Position
As of September 30, 2017

 Total Net Position 

Governmental Activates Business-Type ActivatesAssets and Deferred outflows

Current and other assets
Capital Assets
Deferred outflow related to pension

Total Assents and deferred outflows

Liabilities and deferred inflows 
Long-term debt
Other liabilities
Net pension liability
Deferred inflows related to pension

Total liabilities and deferred inflows

Net Position 
Net Investment in Capital Assents 
Restricted
Unrestricted

24,48526,225 -    57,133 26,225 81,618
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City of Gretna, Florida 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017 

There are six basic transactions that will affect the comparability of the Statement of Net Position summary 
presentation: 

a) Net results of activities will impact current assets and unrestricted net position.
b) Borrowing for capital will increase current assets and long-term debt.
c) Spending or lack of spending borrowed proceeds will affect current assets and capital assets.
d) Spending of non-borrowed current assets on new capital will reduce current assets, increase capital assets,

reduce unrestricted net position, and increase invested in capital assets, net of debt.
e) Principal payment on debt will reduce current assets, long-term debt, reduce unrestricted net position and

increase invested in capital assets, net of debt.
f) Reduction of capital assets through depreciation will reduce capital assets and invested in capital assets, net of

debt.

Governmental Activities comprised $1.254 million of the net position while Business Activities comprised $5.154 
million of net position for fiscal year ended 2017 as compared to $.943 million and $5.587 million for the previous fiscal 
year. 

By far, the largest portion of the City's net position for fiscal year 2017 reflects its net investment in capital assets (e.g., 
land, buildings, machinery, and equipment) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The 
City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future 
spending. Although the City's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the 
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot 
be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

Except for net invested capital assets (net of related debt) the entire portion of the City's net position represents 
resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. There are no excess funds available in 
unrestricted net position that may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

Statement of Activities: 

The following information is presented to assist the reader in understanding the different types of factors that can affect 
the result from operation. Examples of events that may impact the revenues are as follows: 

1) Economic condition can reflect a declining, stable or growing environment and has a substantial impact on property,
non-ad valorem assessments, sales, gas, or other tax revenues as well as consumer spending habits.

2) The City Commission has significant authority to set rates (water, wastewater, stormwater, permitting, impact fees,
user fees, etc.).

3) Changing patterns in intergovernmental and grant revenues (both recurring and nonrecurring) can significantly
change and impact the annual comparisons.

4) Market impacts on investment income may cause investment revenues to fluctuate from the prior year.
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City of Gretna, Florida 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017 

Total Activities Total Activities
2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017

6,598$                   8,825 1,463,986$          1,411,463$          1,470,584$          $          1,420,288
15,493 40,324 17,175 - 32,668 40,324 

195,900 234,000                - - 195,900                234,000                
217,991    283,149 1,481,161 1,411,463            1,699,152                        1,694,612

111,987 101,884                - - 101,884                101,884                
8,298 11,124 - - 11,124 11,124 

77,880 49,134 - - 49,134 49,134 
- - - - - 

478,296 416,810                - - 416,810                416,810                
85 84 - - 84 84 

38,619    45,433  - - 105,460                                45,433
933,156                   907,618 1,481,161            1,411,463            2,414,317                        2,319,081

777,284                   584,690 - - 777,284                                584,690
399,999                   363,634 - - 399,999                                363,634
152,251                162,839                - - 152,251                162,839                

74,923 4,562 - - 74,923 4,562 
79,890    112,095 - - 79,890                 112,095

- - - - - - 
- - 1,677,954              1,369,893 1,677,954                        1,369,893
- - 153,754                                143,567 153,754                                143,567

1,484,347              1,227,820 1,831,708                        1,573,460 3,316,055                        2,801,280
(551,191)                (320,202) (305,547)               (101,997) (901,738)                            (218,205)
330,072                - (330,072)                                    -   

(221,119)                (320,202) (680,619)              (101,997) (511,552)                            (218,205)
1,163,741              1,356,943 6,267,900             5,256,353 3,921,228            $          6,613,094

942,622$             $          1,036,741 5,587,281$          5,154,356$          6,529,903$          $          6,191,097

Governmental Activities Business Activities

Table 3
Statement of Changes in Net Position

As of September 30, 2017

Net position - ending 

Transportation 
Physical Environment
Parks and Recreation 
Interest on long-term debt
Water and Sewer
Solid Waste

Total Expenses
Excess (Deficiency) Before Transfer
Transfer
Change in net position 
Net position - beginning, as restated

Public Safety

Utility Taxes
Other Taxes
Intergovernmental 
Interest Income
Other  

Total Revenues

Expenses:
Program Expenses:

General Government 

Licenses and Permits

Revenue:
Charges for services
Operation grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

General Services 

Property Tax

The City's programs include primarily General Government, Public Safety, Transportation, Physical 
Environment and Parks and Recreation. 
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City of Gretna, Florida 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017 

Each program's net cost (total cost, less revenues generated by the activities), presented below, shows the extent to 
which the City's general taxes support each of the City's programs: 

Table 4
Governmental Activities

 (61,315)
$  (944,671)Total 

(559,293)$  
(399,999) 
(79,890) 

(152,251) 
(74,923) 

(1,266,356)$            

Transportation 
Physical Environment
Culture and Recreation

Public Safety
General Government

 (354,589)
(162,839) 

(4,562) 

2016
Net Cost of Services

2017
Net Cost of Services
$  (361,366)

ten 

As shown in the Statement of Activities approximately t e n  percent (10%) of the governmental revenues were 
derived from grants and contributions. The remaining source of funding for FY 2016 and 2017 came from utility taxes, 
shared revenues and other miscellaneous revenues. The nature of Governmental Activities is to be funded primarily 
from taxes, and transfers from other non- governmental activities. Governmental activities in municipal governments 
are not normally self- supporting. For fiscal years 2016 and 2017, revenues generated from the business-type 
activities supported the City’s overall program revenues. 

Table 5 
Business-Type Activities 

$  (101,997)
8,604 

Total 

(344,970)$  
(5,877) 

(350,847)$  
Soildwaste
Water and sewer $ (110,601)

Table 5
Business-Type Activities

2016
Net Cost of Services

2017
Net Cost of Services
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City of Gretna, Florida 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS 

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance – related legal 
requirements. 

Governmental Funds – The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near term inflows, 
outflows, and balances of expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing 
requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources 
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Differences between the original budget and the final budget were relatively minor and can be briefly summarized as 
follows: 

• Increases in salaries and related expenditures of various departments.
• Increases in various departments for professional service and capital outlay expenditures.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

The capital assets of the City are those assets that are used in the performance of City functions. Capital assets include 
equipment, buildings, land, and park facilities etc.  

Total Total 
Land 1,436,707$    1,436,707$   
Building and Improvements 851,161        851,161        
Furniture and Fixtures 1,588,357      1,725,097     
Machinery and Equipment 1,209,702      1,209,703     
Infrastructure 9,999,611      10,011,464   

Total Assets 15,085,538    15,234,132   
(6,925,563)     (7,070,562)    
8,159,975$    8,163,570$   

(5,454,170) 
3,399,953$             4,763,617 

- 1,209,703 
1,272,783 8,738,681 
5,016,345 10,217,787 

(1,616,392) 

- 
851,161 - 

1,455,694 269,403 

1,436,707$             

Less accumulated depreciation 
Net

4,879,605 
(1,596,393) 
3,283,212$             

(5,329,170) 
4,876,763 

1,436,707$             
851,161 

1,318,954 
- 

1,272,783 
10,205,933 

- 
- 

269,403 
1,209,702 
8,726,828 

September 30, 2017
Governmental 

September 30, 2016

Activities
Business-Type

Acivities
Governmental 

Activities
Business-Type

Acivities

The City’s capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of September 30, 2017, amounts to $8.106 
million (net of accumulated depreciation) versus $8.160 million for fiscal year ended 2016. Additional information on 
the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 on page 36 of this report. 
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City of Gretna, Florida 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017 

Debt 

Currently the City uses debt financing on an as needed basis each year. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City 
had total debt of $2.095 million versus $1.768 million for the previous fiscal year, an increase of $.327 million 
primarily due to the recognition of net pension liability of $1.158 million. None of this amount comprises debt backed 
by the full faith and credit of the government. There were no unsecured debts during the year. The revenue bonds 
payable are secured by franchise fees and public service taxes. The capital leases are secured by equipment. 

Total Total 
786,900$      678,412$      
35,385          -              

237,877        24,312          
City Hall A/C -            -            - 71,140          
Water Tank -            -            - 98,725          

67,061          64,342          
640,777        1,158,406     

1,768,000$ 2,095,337$ 

71,140 
- 98,725 

- 
154,807 

67,061 
192,233 

1,201,001$           

678,412$                
- 
- 

64,342 
810,884 

1,652,363$           

24,312 

- 
347,522 

442,974$              

- - 
Laundry Mat Loan

DEP Loan
Net Pension Liability

Net

-$  
35,385 
83,070 

- 
448,544 

Capitalized Leases

566,999$              

2016 2017
Governmental Business-Type Governmental Business-Type

Activities Acivities Activities Acivities
Revenue Bonds -$  786,900$                

Additional information on the City’s debt can be found in Note 6 on page 38 of this report. 

NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND ECONOMIC FACTORS 

In considering the City’s budget for fiscal year 2017-2018, the City Commission and management continued to be 
cautious as to the growth of revenues and expenditures. Looking forward to the preparation of the fiscal 2017-2018 
budget, the City anticipates increased revenues from the gaming facility, Creek Entertainment Management, as well 
increases tax receipts from the improving economy. The city currently receives 10% of the state tax on Pari-mutual 
gaming services. Despite a slowly recovering housing market and related property values and ad valorem taxes, the City 
anticipates increased general fund revenue over the coming years due to an anticipated expansion of the offerings at 
Creek Entertainment Gretna. 

CONTACTING THE CITY ‘S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a general 
overview of the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions 
about this report or need additional financial information, contact the City’s City Manager, at the City of Gretna, 14615 
Main Street, Gretna, Florida 32351-2328 or via email at ajefferson@mygretna.com. 

mailto:ajefferson@mygretna.com
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 Governmental 
Activities 

 Business-Type 
Activities Total

ASSETS
Equity in pooled cash $              24,910 1,578,774$         1,603,685$        
Accounts receivable, net - 98,459 98,459                
Restricted cash 21,213                218,899 240,112              
Land 1,436,707          - 1,436,707 
Buildings 223,191              - 223,191 
Furniture and fixtures 803,463              723,328               1,526,791 
Machinery and equipment - 212,166 212,166 
Infrastructure 936,592              3,828,123 4,764,715 

Total assets           3,446,076 6,659,749            10,105,826        

DEFERRED OUTFLOW
Deferred outflow related to pensions 137,603              321,075               458,678              

Total deferred outflow 137,603              321,075               458,678              

LIABILITIES
Deficit in cash and equity and pooled cash           1,889,771
Accounts payable and accrued expenses             113,480 24,983                  
Unearned revenues 50,964                
Customer deposits - 57,384 

 1,889,771 
111,761
 50,964 
57,384 

Due within one year: - - - 
Compensated absence - - - 
Capital lease payable - - - 
Loans payable 23,640                53,220                  76,860                
Bonds payable - 25,881 25,881                

Due in more than one year: - - - 
Compensated absence 25,444                34,407                  59,851                
Loans payable 71,812                110,046               181,858              
Bonds payable - 652,531 652,531              
Net pension liability 347,522              810,884 1,158,405          

Total liabilities           2,522,453 1,769,336            4,074,160          

DEFERRED INFLOW
Deferred inflow related pensions 24,485                57,133                  81,618                

Total deferred inflow 24,485                57,133                  81,618                

NET POSITION
Net Invested in capital assets 3,304,501          3,921,939            7,226,440          
Restricted for public safety 21,213                - 21,213 
Restricted for debt service - 161,515 161,515 
Unrestricted          (2,288,973) 1,070,902         (1,218,071)

Total net position $        1,036,741 5,154,356$         $        6,191,097

CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
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Fees, Fines & 
Charges for Services

Operating grants & 
contributions

Capital Grants and 
Contributions

Governmental 
Activities 

Business-Type 
Activities Total

Expenses
Function/Program

Governmental activities
$            -     584,690 $  $  40,324 183,000$  $  (361,366) -$  $  (361,366)

   363,634  8,045 - 1,000  (354,589) - (354,589)
 112,095 780 -  (61,315) -  (61,315)

162,839                 - - - (162,839) - (162,839) 
- - 

50,000 

- 

General government 
Public safety 
Culture and recreation 
Transportation 
Physical environment 4,562 - (4,562) 

- 
(4,562) 

    Total government activities   1,227,820  8,825 40,324 234,000  (944,671) - (944,671)

Business-type activities
Water and wastewater   1,369,893 1,259,292 - - -  (110,601) 53,399 
Solidwaste    143,567 152,171 - - -  8,604 11,988 
     Total busines activities   1,513,460 1,411,463 - - -  (101,997) 65,387 
Total Primary Government 2,585,849$           1,420,588$  40,324$  234,000$   (944,671) (101,997)  (879,284)

General Revenue
101,884 - 101,884 

49,134 - 49,134 
11,124 - 11,124 

416,810 - 416,810 
 84 - 84 

 45,433 -  45,433

Ad-valorem taxes 
Utilities and other taxes 
Licenses and permits 
Intergovernmental revenue 
Interest Income 
Miscellaneous

- 
     Total revenue  624,469 624,469

Change in net position  (320,202)  (101,997)  (218,205)

942,622 5,587,281 6,529,903 
 (330,923)  83,393

 5,256,353  6,613,094

Net position, beginning  

Net position, ending $  1,036,741 5,154,356$  $  6,191,097

Program Revenues

CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

Net Expenseand Changes in Net Position

 414,321

     -

 1,356,943
 Adjustment to beginning balance
Net position, beginning as adjusted 



See notes to basic financial statements. 
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 General Fund  Transportation Fund 

 Non-Major 
Governmental 

Funds Total
ASSETS

Unrestricted Cash 24,910$                  -$  -$  24,910$               
Restricted Cash - - 21,213 21,213 

Total Assets 24,910$                  -$  21,213$  46,123$               

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities    

Deficit in cash and equity in pooled cash $                744,108 $  851,688 $  293,975 $         1,889,771
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 103,477  10,003  - 113,480

Total liabilities  847,585  8с1,691    2,003,251

Fund balance
Unassigned   (822,675)  (861,691)  (272,762)   (1,957,128)

Total fund balances   (822,675)  (861,691)  (272,762)   (1,957,128)

Total liabilities and fund balances 24,910$                  -$  21,213$  46,123$               

CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA 
BALANCE  SHEET 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

 293,975
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$ (1,957,128)

5,016,345 
(1,616,392)   

  (95,272)
  (25,444)

(347,522)      

137,603       
(24,485)        

(50,964)        

$ 1,036,741

Fund balance - total governmental funds (Page 16)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (Page
14) are different because:

Governmental loans and capital lease payable
Compensated absences

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds. 

Governmental capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation 

available to the current period and not reported in governmental funds

Net position of governmental activities (Page 14)

Deferred inflows/outflows or resources not report in the government

Deferred outflows related to pension

Net pension liability

Deferred inflows related to pension 

The statement of net position include certain unearned revenues not

Long-term liabilities, including bonds and note payable are not due
and payable in the current period and, therefore are not reported in 
the governmental funds. 

CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA 
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
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 General Fund  Transportation Fund 

 Non-Major 
Governmental 

Funds Total
Revenue

Ad Valorem 101,884$                -$  -$  101,884$             
Utility taxes 49,134 - - 49,134                  
Licenses and permits 11,124 - - 11,124                  
Intergovernmental 416,810                  - - 416,810               
Grants 41,324 - 50,000 91,324                  
Charges for services 780 - - 780 
Fines and forfeitures -  8,045  8,045
Contributions 183,000                  - - 183,000               
Interest income 68 - 16 84 
Miscellaneous   43,433 - -                43,433

Total Revenues   847,557 -  58,061                905,618

Expenditures
General Government                   581,976 - -                581,976
Public safety 358,682                  -  300                358,982
Culture and recreation  50,745 -                   50,745
Transportation - 162,839 - 162,839 
Physical environment 4,562 - - 4,562 
Debt service 38,788 - - 38,788 
Capital outlay 17,501 1,016 50,000 68,517 

Total expenditures               1,050,254 163,855  50,300             1,266,419

(Deficiency) of revenue over expenditures                 (202,697) (163,855)  7,761               (358,791)

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in      - - - -

Total other financing sources (uses)                   - - - 

Net change in fund balance  (202,697) (163,855)  7,761               (358,791)

Fund (deficit), beginning (619,978)                (697,836) (280,523) (1,598,337)          
Fund (deficit), ending $             (861,691) (822,675) $  $  (272,762)    $      (1,957,128)  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
GOVERNMENT FUNDS

CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA 
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

 -

-

 -
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$         (358,791)

68,517              
(20,000)             

36,920              

Net change in accured interest payable 10,072                
Net change in pension obligation (101,019)            

            44,099

$         (320,202)Change in net position of governmental activities (Page 15)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 18)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of 
activities, the cost of those assets is depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Expenditures for capital outlays
Less current depreciation

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental 
funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current 
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect 
on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, 
discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are 
deferred and amortized in the statement activities. This amount is the net effect of these 
differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Principal payments of loans/notes payable

Some items reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resouces and, therefore, are not reported in the government funds. 

Net effect of various tranactions not requiring use of current resouces

CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (page 18) are different because:
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 Water and 
Sewer Fund 

 Solid Waste 
Fund Total

ASSETS
Current Assets

Equity in pooled cash 1,570,369$        8,405$  1,578,774$        
Accounts receivable, net 86,680 11,779 98,459 

Total current assets 1,657,049          20,184 1,677,233          

Non-current assets:
Restricted cash 199,946              18,953 218,899              
Capital assets:

Furniture and fixtures - 269,403 269,403              
Machinery and equipment 1,174,684          35,019 1,209,703          
Infrastructure 8,738,681          - 8,738,681 
Total capital assets 9,913,365          304,422 10,217,787        
Less: accumulated depreciation (5,250,145)         (204,025)              (5,454,170)        

Total capital assets, net 4,663,220          100,397 4,763,617          
Total non-current assets 4,863,166          119,350 4,982,516          

Total assets 6,520,215          139,534 6,659,749          

DEFERRED OUTFLOW
Deferred outflow related to pensions 321,075              - 321,075 

Total deferred outflow 321,075              - 321,075 

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 20,485 4,498 24,983 
Customer deposits 38,431 18,953 57,384 
Due within one year: - 

Bonds payable 53,220 - 53,220 
Loans payable 25,881 - 25,881 

Due in more than one year:
Compensated absence 29,025 5,580 34,605 
Loans payable 762,378              - 762,378 
Net pension liability 810,884              - 810,884 

Total liabilities 1,740,304          29,031 1,769,335          

DEFERRED INFLOW
Deferred inflow related pensions 57,133 - 57,133 

Total deferred inflow 57,133 - 57,133 

NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 3,847,622          100,397 3,948,019          
Restricted for debt service 161,515              - 161,515 
Unrestricted 1,034,716          10,106 1,044,822 

Total net position 5,043,853$        110,503$             5,154,356$        

CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

 Business- Type Activities 
Enterprise Funds 
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 Water and 
Sewer Fund 

 Solid Waste 
Fund Total

Operating revenue
Charges for services (pledged - see note 6) 1,259,292$        152,171$             1,411,463$        

Total operating revenue 1,259,292          152,171               1,411,463          

Operating expenses
Water system operation 432,767              - 432,767 
Sewer collection and maintenance 352,406              - 
Solidwaste collection - 140,192 
General and administrative               463,095 - 
Depreciation 121,625              3,375 

 352,406 
140,192 
463,095 
125,000

Total operating expenses           1,369,893 143,567                         1,513,460
Operating income            (110,601) 8,604           (101,997)

Income (loss) before transfers
Transfers

Transfers out             -
Total transfers             -

-       -
-                                      -

Change in net position (110,601)            8,604 (101,997)            

Net position, beginning 5,478,286          108,995               5,587,281          
Adjustment to beginning balance (323,832)            (7,096)                  (330,928)            
Net position, beginning (as adjusted) 5,154,454          101,899               5,256,353          
Net position, ending 5,043,853$        110,503$             5,154,356$        

 Business- Type Activities 
Enterprise Funds 
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Major Fund Non-major fund
Water & Sewer Solidwaste

Fund Fund Total 

 $    1,250,093  $    155,477  $    1,405,570 
(729,223)   (82,658)     (811,881)

  (449,448)   (64,215)     (513,663)
  -  -     -  

71,422 8,604 80,026  

  - -
  -

  (11,853)  
  (34,691)

  (213,833)

 -                -

(11,853) 
(34,691)  

(213,833)

  (142,411)   8,604             (133,807)
            1,912,726   18,754   1,931,480 
 $    1,770,315  $    27,358  $    1,797,673 

Displayed as:
 $    1,570,369  $    8,405  $    1,578,774 

  199,946   18,953   218,899 
 $    1,770,315  $    27,358  $    1,797,673 

 $    (110,601)  $    8,604  $  (101,997)

121,427 3,573 125,000
50,059 50,059 

6,567 
- 13,647 

  (12,309) (3,507) (15,816)
2,632 (1,300) 1,332 

$71,422 $8,604  $    80,026 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation
Non-cash pension adjustment     

Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 
(Decrease) increase in compensated absence
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable 
(Decrease) increase in customers' deposits

CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR YEAR  ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Net increase (decrease) in pooled cash and cash equivalents
Pooled cash and cash equivalents, beginning
Pooled cash and cash equivalents, ending

Net cash provided from (used in) noncapital financing activities

Net cash  (used for) capital and related financing activities

Principal payments on debt
Issuance of debt Acquisition 
of capital assets Interest paid 
on capital debt

Unrestricted
Restricted

Total, September 30, 2017

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from customers
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to employees
Cash (paid for) interfund services

Net cash provided from operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Transfers to other funds

  98,725  
(266,014)  

13,647 

(266,014)  
  98,725  

    -

1,234 7,801   
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CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The City of Gretna, Florida (the “City”) in Gadsden County, Florida (the “County”) was incorporated in 
1909. The City operates under a Commission/City Manager form of government and provides municipal 
services to its residents, including general government, public safety, public works, and recreation. The 
City also operates an industrial park, water and sewer, and sanitation enterprises. 

The following is a summary of the City’s significant accounting policies presented to assist the reader 
in interpreting the financial statements and other data in this report. These policies are considered 
essential and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements. 

A. Reporting Entity
The financial reporting entity, under which the financial statements are prepared include all the 
organizations, activities, functions, and component units for which the City (primary government) is 
financially accountable. Financial accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting majority of the 
component unit’s Board, and either (1) the City’s ability to impose its will over the component unit, or 
(2) the possibility that the component unit will provide a financial benefit to or impose a financial burden
on the City.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the primary government is financially 
accountable or another organization for which the nature and significance of its relationship with the 
primary government is so important that excluding it from the reporting entity’s financial statements 
would make it the statements misleading. Component units are included in the reporting entity either as 
blended or as discretely presented component units. All funds/departments are regarded as one legal 
entity; therefore, the financial position and results of operations of the funds/departments are reported as 
part of the primary government. 

Based upon the application of the criteria, the financial statements include only the financial statements 
of the City of Gretna, Florida. 

Blended Component Units 

Blended component units are separate legal entities that meet the component unit criteria described above 
and whose governing body is the same, or substantially the same, as the City Commission or the component 
units provides services entirely to the City or the component unit debt is expected to be repaid entirely 
or almost entirely by the primary government. Currently, the City has no blended component units. 

Discretely Presented Component Units 

Discretely presented component units are separate legal entities that meet the component unit criteria 
described above, but do not meet the criteria for blending. Currently, the City has no discretely presented 
component units. 
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CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of 
activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the City. For the most part, the 
effect of inter-fund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which 
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-
type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are 
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific 
function. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly 
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function, and 2) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular 
function. Taxes and other items not included among program revenues are reported as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary 
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. The major 
individual governmental fund and the major individual enterprise fund are reported as separate 
columns in the fund financial statements. 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are 
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of 
the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are 
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements 
imposed by the provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available. Revenues are available when they are collectible within the current period or 
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers 
revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. 
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, 
debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and 
judgments, are recorded 
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CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued) 

Only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. Proceeds of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as 
other financing sources. 

Property taxes, franchise fees, communications taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current 
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues 
of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are measurable and available only when received by 
the City. 

The City reports the following major governmental fund: 

The general fund is the general operating fund of the City. All general tax revenues and other receipts 
that are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to some other funds are accounted for in this fund. 
Many of the more important activities of the City, including operation of the City’s public works 
departments; street and highway maintenance; public safety, and recreation programs, are accounted for 
in this fund. 

The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 

The water and sewer fund is used to account for the provision of water and sewer services to the 
residents and the commerce of the City. 

The solid waste fund is used to account for the provision of solid waste collection, disposal and 
recycling for all residential and commercial customers within the City. 

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments- in-lieu of taxes and other charges between 
the City’s utilities function and various other functions of the City. Elimination of these charges would 
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 
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CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued)

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, the legal and contractual 
requirements of the numerous individual programs are used as guidance. There are, however, essentially 
two types of these revenues. In one, monies must be expended on the specific purpose or project before 
any amounts will be paid to the City; therefore, revenues are recognized based upon the expenditures 
recorded and the availability criteria. In the other, monies are virtually unrestricted as to purpose 
of expenditure, and are usually revocable only for failure to comply with prescribed requirements. 
These resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt, or earlier if the susceptible to accrual 
criteria are met. Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for 
goods, services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general 
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues 
of the City’s enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for 
enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital 
assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and 
expenses. 

D. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City, in accordance with its charter and state law, adheres to the following procedures in 
establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 

a. Prior to September 20, 2017 the City Manager submits to the City Commission a proposed
operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following October 1. The operating
budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

b. Public hearings are held to obtain taxpayer comments.
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CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

D. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting (continued)

c. Prior to October 1, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an ordinance. Budgetary
control is maintained at the departmental and fund level, with finance department providing
support to departments in the administration of their budgets. In accordance with the City’s
budget transfer policy, the City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within any
fund or function; however, the City Commission must approve any supplemental
appropriations or revisions that amend the total expenditures of any fund. During the year,
supplementary appropriations were necessary to ensure that expenditures did not exceed
budgeted appropriations. All budgets are on a basis consistent with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

4. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended in accordance with City
ordinances. The accompanying financial statements incorporate the original budget ordinances.

5. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.

E. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position

Cash, Equity in Pooled Cash and Investments

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term investments with maturity dates,
within three months from the dates acquired by the City.

The City pools substantially all cash. Each fund’s equity share of the total pooled cash is included in
the accompanying statement of net position under the caption “cash and equity in pooled cash”.

Investments, consisting of U.S. Governmental and agency securities, bonds, equity securities and
mutual funds, are stated at fair value. The City did not have any investments during fiscal year
2016.

Allowance for Bad Debts

The City calculates its allowance for bad debts using historical collection data, specific account
analysis, and management’s judgment. As of September 30, 2017, the allowance for bad debts was
$47,786 for the enterprise fund.
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CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Assets, Liabilities and Net Position (continued) 

Inter-fund Transactions 

Transactions among City funds that would be treated as revenues and expenditures or expenses if they 
involved organizations external to City government are accounted for as revenues and expenditures or 
expenses in the funds involved. 

Transactions which constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures initially made from it which 
are properly applicable to another fund are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as 
reductions of expenditures in the reimbursed fund. 

Transactions, which constitute the transfer of resources from a fund receiving revenues to a fund 
through which the revenues are to be expended, are separately reported in the respective funds’ 
operating statements. 

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements at the end of the 
fiscal year are referred to as “due to/from other funds” or “advances to/from other funds”. Any residual 
balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in 
the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”. 

Non-current portions of long-term inter-fund loan receivables are reported as advances within the 
governmental funds, and are offset equally by a fund balance reserve account which indicates that 
they do not constitute expendable available financial resources and, therefore, are not available for 
appropriation. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets, including land, buildings, improvements, infrastructure, and equipment assets, are 
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide 
financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost of 
more than $500 and an initial useful life of one year or greater. Such assets are recorded at historical 
cost, if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date 
of donation. 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend 
the life of the asset are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest 
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets is included as part of the capitalized value 
of the assets constructed. During 2016, there was no interest to capitalize. 
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CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Assets, Liabilities and Net Position (continued) 

Capital Assets (continued) 

Buildings, improvements, infrastructure and equipment assets are depreciated using the straight-line 
method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Assets Years 
Infrastructure systems 35 
Utility plant, equipment and improvements 40 
Buildings and improvements 10-50
Improvements other than building 10-50
Equipment and other depreciable assets 5-20

Compensated Absences 

City employees accumulate vacation and sick leave hours for subsequent use or for payment upon 
termination, death or retirement. Sick leave credits are not payable upon employees’ termination or 
retirement. 

For government-wide statements and proprietary fund types, these accumulations are recorded as 
expenses and liabilities of the appropriate fund in the fiscal year earned. For governmental fund 
types, the amount of accumulated unpaid vacation payable from available resources is recorded as a 
liability of the respective fund only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee 
retirements and resignations. There were no matured compensated absences as of September 30, 
2017. 

Net Position and Fund Balance 

Net position is the result of assets and deferred outflows of resources, less liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources. Net position of the government-wide and proprietary funds are categorized as 
net investment in capital assets, restricted or unrestricted. 

The first category represents net position related to property, plant, equipment and infrastructure 
reduced by depreciation and outstanding debt used to construct or purchase capital assets, and deferred 
inflow/outflow of resources that are attributed to the acquisition of those assets. 

The restricted category represents the balance of assets restricted by requirements of revenue bonds and 
other externally imposed constraints or by enabling legislation in excess of the related liabilities 
payable from restricted assets. All remaining amounts are considered to be unrestricted. 
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Assets, Liabilities and Net Position (continued) 

Net Position and Fund Balance (continued) 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund balance is categorized as nonspendable, restricted, 
committed, assigned and unassigned. These categories are based primarily on the extent to which 
the City is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in fund balances can 
be spent. 

The City’s fund balance classification policies and procedures are as follows: 

Nonspendable funds are funds that cannot be spent because they are either not in spendable form 
(e.g. inventories and prepaids) or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 

Restricted funds are funds that have constraints placed on their use either externally by creditors, 
grantors, contributors, laws or regulations or other governments or by law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation. 

Committed funds are funds that have constraints placed on their use through the passage of a 
formal action by the City Commission which is the City’s highest level of decision-making authority. 
The City Commission has the authority to set aside funds for a specific purpose and requires the 
passage of a resolution or ordinance. Resolutions and ordinances are considered an equally binding 
form of City’s highest level of formal action. The passage of a resolution or ordinance must take 
place prior to September 30

th of the applicable fiscal year but the amount can be determined at a 
later date. A resolution or ordinance would also be required to modify or rescind the specific use or 
amount. 

Assigned funds are a mounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be used for specific purposes 
but are neither restricted nor committed are classified as assigned fund balances. This policy hereby 
delegates the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes to the City’s Finance 
Director for purposes of reporting these amounts in the annual financial statements. 

Unassigned fund balance represents residual positive net resources of the general fund in excess of 
what can be properly classified in one of the other four categories. 

Within the foregoing five categories, the committed, assigned and unassigned are considered 
unassigned fund balances. The City will maintain an economic uncertainty reserve of at least 3% 
of total General Fund operating expenditures (including other financing). The primary purpose of 
this reserve is to avoid the need for service level reductions in the event of an economic downturn 
causing revenue to come in lower than budget. This reserve may be increased from time to time in order 
to address specific anticipated revenue shortfalls. 
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

Assets, Liabilities and Net Position (continued) 

Net Position and Fund Balance (continued) 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use 
restricted resources first when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and 
unrestricted fund balance is available, unless there are legal contracts that prohibit doing so, then 
unrestricted resources as they are needed. Similarly, when an expenditure is incurred for purposes for 
which amounts in any of the unrestricted classifications of fund balance could be used, the City 
considers committed amounts to be reduced first, followed by assigned amounts and then unassigned 
amounts. This policy is in place to provide a measure of protection for the City against unforeseen 
circumstances and to comply with GASB Statement No. 54. No other policy or procedure supersedes 
the authority and provision of this policy. 

Property Taxes 

Property values are assessed as of January 1 of each year, at which time taxes become an 
enforceable lien on property. Tax bills are mailed in October and are payable upon receipt. Taxes 
become delinquent on April 1 of the year following the year of assessment and State law provides for 
enforcement of collection of property taxes by the sale of interest-bearing tax certificates and the 
seizure of personal property to satisfy unpaid property taxes. The procedures result in the collection of 
essentially all taxes prior to June 30 of the year following the year of assessment. 

No accruals for the property tax levy becoming due in November 2016 are included in the accompanying 
financial statements since the legal right to receive these taxes occurs on November 1, 2016, and such 
taxes are collected to finance expenditures for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2017. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows for proprietary fund types funds, all highly liquid 
investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when purchased are 
considered to be cash equivalents. 
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

F. New Accounting Pronouncements Adopted

At September 30, 2016, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions-an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. This Statement improves
accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. It also improves
information provided by state and local governmental employers about financial support for pensions
that is provided by other entities. Because of the adoption of this statement, the City recorded a
liability for the unfunded portion of its pension plan. See Note 7 – Employee
Pension Plans.

Following is the new pronouncement made by the Government Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) which took effect during the fiscal year 2017 and was implemented by the
City:

GASB Statement No. 82, Pension Issues—an amendment of GASB Statements
No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73, was effective for reporting periods beginning after
June 15, 2016. Specifically, this Statement addresses issues regarding (1) the
presentation of payroll-related measures in required supplementary information,
(2) the selection of assumptions and the treatment of deviations from the guidance
in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for financial reporting purposes, and (3) the
classification of payments made by employers to satisfy employee (plan member)
contribution requirements.
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NOTE 2. CASH, EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

As of September 30, 2017, the value of the City’s deposits and investments in non- pension activities, 
with their respective credit ratings, were as follows: 

Carrying 
Amount Maturity

$   (94,980) NA
 240,112 NA

Total Cash and Investments $   145,132

Credit Rating 

NA
Restricted Cash NA
Pooled Cash

As of September 30, 2017, the City had no investments. All deposits with financial institutions are fully 
insured or collateralized as required by the City Commission. The deposits are also covered by federal 
depository insurance and, for the amount more than such federal depository insurance, by the State of 
Florida’s Public Deposits Act (the “Act”). Provisions of the Act require that public deposits may only be 
made at qualified public depositories. The Act requires each qualified public depository to deposit with 
the State Treasurer eligible collateral equal to or in excess of the required collateral as determined by the 
provisions of the Act. In the event of a failure by a qualified public depository, losses, in excess of federal 
depository insurance and proceeds from the sale of the securities pledged by the defaulting depository, 
are assessed against the other qualified public depositories of the same type as the depository in default. 

Restricted cash represents the following: 

Fines and Foretures 21,213$      
Debt Service       168,221
Customer deposits 50,678        

Total $    240,112

NOTE 3. RECEIVABLES 

Receivables as of  year-end, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are 
as follows: 

Total 
-$        138,730$     138,730$  
-  40,271   40,271   
-$        98,459$       98,459$    

Govermental 
Activities 

Business-Type
Activities

Accounts receivable
Less: allowance for bad debts
Net accounts receivable

The accounts receivable represents approximately one month’s billing for enterprise funds. 
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NOTE 4. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS 

Interfund activity balances for the City as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30 are summarized 
as follows: 

a. Interfund transfers

$ 
-   
-   
-   

$    -

Net
$    

-  
Solidwaste fund    

$    
  

$   
-   
-$    Net Transfer Out

Transfer-Out
-$    
-   

Business-Type Activities
Transfer-In 

$   
-  

-   
-   
-   

Sewer fund

$ 
-   
-   
-   

$     -

General fund
CDBG Fund
Department of Environmental Protection fund
Transportation Fund
Non-Departmental Fund

Water fund

Net Transfer-In

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect to the 
fund that statute or budget requires to expend them or (2) use unrestricted revenues collected in 
the General Fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary 
authority. 

Rest of page is intentionally left blank. 
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NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2017 was as follows: 

Balance Balance 
Oct. 1, 2016 Increases Decreases Sept. 30, 2017

1,436,707   -  -  1,436,707  
1,436,707$   -  -  1,436,707  

851,161  -  851,161  
1,318,954   136,740    1,455,694  
1,272,783   -  1,272,783  
3,442,898   136,740    - 3,579,638

(653,970)   (653,970)    
(582,637)     (8,600) (591,237)    
(359,785)   (11,400) (371,185)    

(1,596,392)    (1,616,392)   

1,846,506$       116,740    - 1,963,246  

3,283,213$       116,740    - 3,399,953  

1,479,107   -  -  1,479,107  
8,726,828   11,853   - 8,738,681

10,205,935   11,853   - 10,217,788

(548,905)      (12,500) (561,405)    
(4,780,265)     ( 112,500) (4,892,765)   
(5,329,170)    (5,454,170)   

4,876,765$   $     (113,147)    - 4,763,618$  

Public Safety
Culture and recreation 

Total 

14,750$      
4,625   

625 

20,000$      

General Government

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Depreciation was charged to governmental functions as follows:

Total accumulated depreciation 

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Business-type activities:
Capital assets being depreciated:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Infrastructure

Total assets being depreciated
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Infrastructure

Buildings and improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings and improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Improvements other that buildings

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Capital assets being depreciated:

Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land
Total assets not being depreciated

  (20,000)

  ( 125,000)
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NOTE 6. LONG-TERM DEBT 

Business-type Activities Long-term Debt 

Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1995 

On May 30, 1995, the City of Gretna issued $800,000 of serial bonds all of which were purchased by the 
U.S. Department of Agriculture, Farmers Home Administration (“FMHA”). In May 1996, the FMHA 
increased the loan by $276,000. Proceeds were issued for improvements to the Water and Sewer System. 

Pledged Revenues - Net revenues of the system are pledged as collateral and retained in a “Revenue 
Fund” which is to be separate and apart from all other funds, for the payment of the revenue bond’s 
principal and interest. 

Sinking Fund - On or before the 15th day of each month, the City is to transfer from the Revenue Fund 
and deposit into the “Reserve Account” which is to be held in the Sinking Fund, a sum equal to 1/12 of 
1/10 of the “Maximum Bond Service Requirement”, until the amount on deposit in the Reserve 
Account equals the “Maximum Bond Service Requirement.” The City is following the Maximum 
Bond Service Requirement.  

Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds, Series 1996 

On December 10, 1992 the U. S. Department of Agriculture, Farmers Home Administration 
(FMHA), approved the City's $1,530,000 (loan of $800,000 and grant funds of $730,000) grant and 
loan application for improvements to its wastewater disposal system.   In connection therewith, the 
City entered into a   purchase agreement to acquire property to extend the effluent disposal line into 
the southern portion of Gadsden County and purchase land for percolation ponds, and other necessary 
items aggregating $100,000. FMHA's approval of the application contained several special conditions 
and was based upon the needs of the City together with sewer needs of a new prison that will be using 
the City's utilities. On May 1996, the FMHA increased the loan by $276,000 and the grant by $184,000. 
As of September 30, 2003, the City has drawn- down the entire $800,000 from the loan and $730,000 
from the grant. As of September 30, 2017, there were no outstanding construction commitments related 
to the wastewater treatment disposal system. 
Changes in Long-term Liabilities 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2017 was as follows: 

Beginning Ending Due within
Balance Additions Payment Balance One Year

Governmental activities
29,799$     -$     29,799$       -$     -$     
31,534   - 7,122           24,412   7,125   

71,140   - 71,140 16,515   

61,333$     71,140$       36,921$      95,552$      23,640$      

Capital Lease
Laundromat
City Hall AC Unit
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NOTE 6. LONG-TERM DEBT (continued) 

Changes in Long-term Liabilities (continued) 

Beginning Ending Due within
Balance Additions Payments Balance One Year

521,004$      -$      (20,000)$      501,004$      19,377$      
183,968       - (6,560) 177,408       6,504         

DEP Loan 67,061         - (2,719) 64,342         2,795         
US Tank 149,150       - (50,425) 98,725         50,425       

704,972$      -$      (26,560)$      841,479$      79,101$      

Business-Type activities
Water and Sewer Revenue Bond

Series 1995
Series 1996

Total Business-type Activities

The annual requirements to pay principal and interest on the outstanding obligations at September 
30, 2017 are as follows: 

Total Prncipal Interest Total 

27,454$       81,066$    25,118$    106,183$    
27,664   80,274   24,094   104,368   
27,664   33,364   23,026   56,390    
22,291   34,815   21,912   56,727    

-    169,625  91,058   260,683   
-    235,998  54,893   290,890   
-    206,337  12,118   218,454   

105,073$     841,479$     252,218$     1,093,697$     

Business Activites

  Rest of page is intentionally left blank. 
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NOTE 7. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

Florida Retirement System Pension Plan General Information 

All the City’s employees participate in the Florida Retirement System (FRS). As provided by Chapters 
121 and 112, Florida Statutes, the FRS provides two cost sharing, multiple employer defined benefit plans 
administered by the Florida Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement, including 
the FRS Pension Plan (“Pension Plan”) and the Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy (“HIS Plan”). Under 
Section 121.4501, Florida Statutes, the FRS also provides a defined contribution plan (“Investment 
Plan”) alternative to the FRS Pension Plan, which is administered by the State Board of Administration 
(“SBA”). As a general rule, membership in the FRS is compulsory for all employees working in a 
regularly established position for a state agency, county government, district school board, state university, 
community college, or a participating city or special district within the State of Florida. The FRS provides 
retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members 
and beneficiaries. Benefits are established by Chapter 121, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 60S, Florida 
Administrative Code. Amendments to the law can be made only by an act of the Florida State Legislature. 

The State of Florida annually issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial 
statements and required supplementary information for the FRS.  The latest available  report  may  be 
obtained  by  writing  to  the  State  of  Florida  Division  of Retirement, Department of Management 
Services, P.O. Box 9000, Tallahassee, Florida 32315-9000, or from the web site:  
www.dms.myflorida.com/workforce_operations/retirement/publications. 

A. Pension Plan Description

The Pension Plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, with a Deferred Retirement 
Option Program (“DROP”) for eligible employees. 

Benefits Provided 

Benefits under the Pension Plan are computed on the basis of age, average final compensation, and service 
credit. For Pension Plan members enrolled before July 1, 2011, Regular class members who retire at 
or after age 62 with at least six years of credited service or 30 years of service regardless of age are 
entitled to a retirement benefit payable monthly for life, equal to 1.6% of their final average 
compensation based on the five highest years of salary, for each year of credited service. Vested 
members with less than 30 years of service may retire before age 62 and receive reduced retirement 
benefits. Senior Management Service class members who retire at or after age 62 with at least six years 
of credited service or 30 years of service regard less of age are entitled to a retirement benefit payable 
monthly for life, equal to 2.0% of their final average compensation based on the five highest years of 
salary for each year of credited service. 

http://www.dms.myflorida.com/workforce_operations/retirement/publications


39 

CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 

NOTE 7. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued) 

A. Pension Plan (continued) Benefits Provided

(continued) 

For Plan members enrolled on or after July 1, 2011, the vesting requirement is extended to eight years of 
credited service for all these members and increasing normal retirement to age 65 or 33 years of service 
regardless of age for Regular and Senior Management Service. Also, the final average compensation for all 
these members will be based on the eight highest years of salary. 

As provided in Section 121.101, Florida Statutes, if the member is initially enrolled in the Pension Plan 
before July 1, 2011, and all service credit was accrued before July 1, 2011, the annual cost- of- living 
adjustment is three percent per year. If the member is initially enrolled before July 1, 2011, and has 
service credit on or after July 1, 2011, there is an individually calculated cost-of-living adjustment. The 
annual cost-of-living adjustment is a proportion of three percent determined by dividing the sum of the 
pre-July 2011 service credit by the total service credit at retirement multiplied by three percent. Plan 
members initially enrolled on or after July 1, 2011, will not have a cost-of-living adjustment after retirement. 

Contributions 

Effective July 1, 2011, all enrolled members of the FRS, other than DROP participants, are required to 
contribute three percent of their salary to the FRS. In addition to member contributions, governmental 
employers are required to make contributions to the FRS based on state-wide contribution rates established 
by the Florida Legislature. These rates are updated as of July 1 of each year. The employer contribution rates 
by job class for the periods from October 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017 and from July 1, 2017 through 
September 30, 2017, respectively, were as follows: Regular—7.52% and 7.92%; Special Risk Administrative 
Support—28.06% and 34.63%; Special Risk—22.57% and 23.27%; Senior Management Service—21.77% 
and 22.71%; Elected Officers’—36.70% and 3 9 . 6 4 %; and DROP participants—12.99% and 13.26%. 
These employer contribution rates include 1.66% and 1.66% HIS Plan subsidy for the periods October 1, 
2016 through June 30, 2017 and from July 1, 2017 through September 30, 2017, respectively. 

The City’s contributions, including employee contributions, to the Pension Plan totaled 
$128,496 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017. 



40 

CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 

NOTE 7. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued) 

A. Pension Plan (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

At September 30, 2017, the City reported a liability of $925,264 for its proportionate share of the Pension 
Plan’s net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total 
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
July 1, 2017. The City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on the City’s 2016-17 
fiscal year contributions relative to the 2015-16 fiscal year contributions of all participating members. 
At June 30, 2017, the City's proportionate share was .003128077% which was a decrease of .000159451% 
from its proportionate share measured as of June 30, 2016. 

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017, the City recognized   pension expense of $152,170. In 
addition, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions from the following sources: 

-  

Differences between expected and actual experience
Change in assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 

pension plan investments
Changes due to proportional share 

Deferred 
Inflow of 
Resources

Deferred 
Outflow of 
Resources

84,917$   
310,954  

17,786  

Description 

413,657$   

(5,125)$   
-   

(22,930)   
(25,969)   
(54,024)$    

Rest of page is intentionally left blank. 
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NOTE 7. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued) 

A. Pension Plan (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

The deferred outflows of resources related to the Pension Plan, totaling $18,773 resulting from City 
contributions to the plan subsequent to the measurement date, will be recognized as a reduction of the net 
pension liability in the fiscal ending September 30, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the Pension Plan will be recognized in pension expense 
as follows: 

(9,266)$  

Fiscal Year Ending September 30, 2017
2018
2019
2020
2021

Thereafter

Amount
(3,861)$  
(3,861)$  
(3,861)$  
(3,861)$  

A. Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability in the July 1, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using the following 
actuarial assumption, applied to all period included in the measurement: 

Inflation 2.60 % 
Salary increases 3.25%, average, including inflation 
Investment rate of return 7.10%, net of pension plan investment expense, 

including inflation 

Mortality rates were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale BB tables, with adjustments for 
mortality improvements based on Scale AA.  

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2017, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2008 through June 30, 2013. 
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NOTE 7. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued) 

A. Pension Plan (continued)

The long-term expected rate of return on Pension Plan investments was not based on historical returns, 
but instead is based on a forward-looking capital market economic model. The allocation policy’s 
description of each asset class was used to map the target allocation to the asset classes shown below. Each 
asset class assumption is based on a consistent set of underlying assumptions and includes an adjustment 
for the inflation assumption. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic and geometric real 
rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table: 

Annual Compound
Annual Annual 

Target Arithmetic (Geometric) Standard
Allocation Return Return Deviation 

1% 3% 3.0% 1.8%
18% 4.5% 4.4% 4.2%
53% 7.8% 6.6% 17%
10% 6.6% 5.9% 13%
6% 11.5% 7.8% 30%

12% 6.1% 5.6% 9.7%
2.6% 1.9%

Strategic Investments
Assumed inflation- Mean

Description 

Cash
Fixed Income
Global Equity
Real Estate
Private Equity

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.10%. The Pension Plan’s fiduciary 
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active 
and inactive employees. Therefore, the discount rate for calculation the total pension liability is equal to 
the long-term expected rate of return. The discount rate was 7.60% in the July 1, 2016 valuation.  

Rest of page is intentionally left blank. 
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NOTE 7. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued) 

A. Pension Plan (continued)

Sensitivity of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Position Liability to Changes in the Discount 
Rate 

The following represents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using 
the discount rate of 7.10%, as we l l  a s  wha t  t he  Ci ty ’ s  proportionate share of the net pension liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.10%) or one 
percentage point higher (8.10%) than the current rate: 

Discount Rate 
Minus 1% 

Discount Rate 
7.10% 

Discount Rate 
Plus 1% 

City's proportionate share of the 
Net pension liability $868,823 $859,570 $850,318 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information regarding the Pension Plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued 
FRS Pension Plan and Other State-Administered Systems Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

 Rest of page is intentionally left blank. 
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B. Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) Plan Description

The HIS Plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan established under Section 
112.363, Florida Statutes, and may be amended by the Florida legislature at any time. The benefit is a 
monthly payment to assist retirees of State-administered retirement systems in paying their health 
insurance costs and is administered by the Florida Department of Management Services, Division of 
Retirement. 

Benefits Provided 

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017, eligible retirees and beneficiaries received a monthly HIS 
payment of $5 for each year of creditable service completed at the time of retirement, with a minimum 
HIS payment of $30 and a maximum HIS payment of $150 per month, pursuant to Section 112.363, 
Florida Statutes.  To be eligible to receive these benefits, a retiree under a State-administered retirement 
system must provide proof of health insurance coverage, which may include Medicare. 

Contributions 

The HIS Plan is funded by required contributions from FRS participating employers as set by the Florida 
Legislature. Employer contributions are a percentage of gross compensation for all active FRS members. 
For the fiscal year ended June 2017 and 2016, the contribution rate was 1.66% of payroll, pursuant to Section 
112.363, Florida Statutes. The City contributed 100% of its statutorily required contributions for the current 
and preceding three years. HIS Plan contribution are deposited in a separate trust fund from which 
payments are authorized. HIS Plan benefits are not guaranteed and are subject to annual legislative 
appropriation. In the event legislative appropriation or available funds fail to provide full subsidy benefits 
to all participants, benefits may be reduced or cancelled. 

The City’s contributions to the HIS Plan totaled $19,273 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017. 

 Rest of page is intentionally left blank. 
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NOTE 7. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued) 

B. Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) Plan

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

At September 30, 2017, the City reported a liability of $233,141 for its proportionate share of the HIS 
Plan’s net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 
2017. The City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on the City’s 2016-17 fiscal 
year contributions relative to the 2016-17 fiscal year contributions of all participating members. At June 
30, 2017, the City's proportionate share was .002180428% percent, which was a decrease of .000081955% 
percent from its proportionate share measured as of June 30, 2016. 

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017, the City recognized pension expense of $19,273. In addition, 
the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred in flows of resources related to pensions 
from the following sources: 

129   
Changes due to proportional share 12,249  (6,949)  

45,021$   $ 

pension plan investments -   

Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience -$  (485)$    
Change in assumptions 32,772  (20,160)   
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 

Deferred Deferred 
Description Outflow of Inflow of 

   (27,594) 
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CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 

NOTE 7. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued) 

B. Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) Plan

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability in the July 1, 2016 and recalculated as of June 30, 2017 using a standard actuarial 
roll-forward technique. The following actuarial assumption applied to all periods included in the 
measurement were used to determine the total pension liability: 

Inflation 2.60 % 
Salary increases 3.25%, average, including inflation 
Investment rate of return 3.58%, net of pension plan investment expense, 

including inflation 

Mortality rates were based on the Generational RP-2000 with Projection Scale BB tables. 

The actuarial assumptions used to determine the total pension liability as of June 30, 2017 were based 
on certain results of an actuarial experience study of the FRS for the period July 1, 2008 through June 
30, 2013. 

B. Health Insurance Subsidy (HIS) Plan Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.58%. In general, the discount rate for 
calculating the total pension liability is equal to the single rate equivalent to discounting at the long-term 
expected rate of return for benefit payments prior to the projected depletion date. Because the HIS benefit is 
essentially funded on a pay-as-you- go basis, the depletion date is considered to be immediate, and the 
single equivalent discount rate is equal to the municipal bond rate selected by the HIS Plan sponsor. The 
Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index was adopted as the applicable municipal 
bond index. 

 Rest of page is intentionally left blank. 



47 

CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 

NOTE 7. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued) 

Sensitivity of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Position Liability to Changes in the Discount 
Rate 

The following represents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using 
the discount rate of 3.58%, as we l l  a s  wha t  t he  C i ty ’ s  proportionate share of the net pension liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (2.58%) or one 
percentage point higher (4.58%) than the current rate: 

Discount Rate 
Minus 1% 

Discount Rate 
3.58% 

Discount Rate 
Plus 1% 

City's proportionate share of the 
Net pension liability $227,126 $224,795 $222,463 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

Detailed information regarding the Pension Plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately 
issued FRS Pension Plan and Other State-Administered Systems Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report. 
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CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 

General Property Taxes 

Property taxes levied in September 30, 2017 are not subject to accrual, as they are not considered 
available and are for the purpose of financing the budget of the 2017-2018 fiscal year. Property tax 
revenues recognized for the 2016-2017 fiscal year were levied September 2016. Almost all unpaid 
taxes are collected via the sale of tax certificates prior to fiscal year end; therefore, there were no 
material taxes receivable at fiscal year- end. 

Key dates in the property tax cycle (latest dates where appropriate) are as follows: 

November 30, 2016
April 1, 2017Delinquent

Assessment roll certified
Property taxes levied
Beginning of fiscal year for which taxes have 
assessed
Property taxes payable: Maximum discount 

Revenues for Fiscal Year 
Ended September 30, 2017
June 21, 2016
October 1, 2016
October 1, 2016

A summary of ad valorem taxes for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017 is as follows: 

22,167,466$      
4.8522

107,561$           100%
Less:     Bankruptcy 1,398 1.30%

Uncollected 4,279 4%
Taxes Collected 101,884$           94.7%

Tax roll:
Taxable value
Millage rate (1,000 mills)
Tax roll:
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CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 

NOTE 8. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (Continued) 

Risk Management 

The government is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The government obtained general 
liability insurance at a cost it considered to be economically justifiable. The government pays an annual 
premium for its general insurance coverage to the Florida League of Cities Florida Municipal Insurance 
Trust. 

The government continues to carry commercial insurance for all other risks of loss, including settled 
claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three 
years. 

The City continues to implement and monitor various risk control techniques to minimize accidents and 
losses to City personnel and property. The Worker’s Compensation program is administered by Florida 
Municipal Insurance Trust. 

Litigation 

As of October 29, 2018, there exists no matters involving claims, unasserted possible claims, contingent 
liabilities or assessments for which there is any reasonable possibility that a City asset may be impaired or 
litigation incurred. 
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CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 

NOTE 9. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

The City has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition and disclosure in the financial 
statements through November 30, 2018. No subsequent events have been recognized or disclosed. 

NOTE 10. NEW FINANCIAL STANDARDS NOT YET IMPLEMENTED 

GASB Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other than Pension Plans, and Statement 
75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The City has 
not elected early implementation and, therefore, has not determined the financial statement impact, if any, 
of these new pronouncements. 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND FOR THE 

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 

Original Final Actual 

109,492$     109,492$      101,884$             
67,900         67,900          49,134                 

6,500           6,500            11,124                 
435,327       435,327        416,810               
318,000       318,000        274,324               

500              500               780 
4,500           4,500            8,345 

-               -                84 
47,300         47,300                         45,433

989,519       989,519        967,945               

64,699         64,699          56,928                 
89,986         89,986          96,497                 
78,626         78,626          79,939                 

192,907       192,907        266,185               
426,218       426,218        499,549               

413,594       413,594        363,307               
5,000           5,000            9,541 

418,594       418,594        372,848               

122,250       122,250        42,953                 
2,000           2,000            4,563 

183,000       183,000        319,860               
1,152,062    1,152,062     1,239,773            

(162,543)      (162,543)       (271,828)              

164000 164000 164000
-               -                - 

164000 164000 164000
1,457$         1,457$          (107,828)              

1,362,198            
1,254,370$          

Miscellaneous

REVENUES:
Taxes:

Ad valorem
Utility and other taxes

Licenses and permits
Intergovermental 
Grants and contributions
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Interest income

Inspection

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General government:
City Commission

Public Safety

City Management
Legal
Finance

Total Government 

Police Department 

Loan proceeds

Total Public Safety 

Parks and Recreation 
Physical Enviornment
Others

Total Expenditures

Execess (deficiency) revenues 
over exppenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOUCES (USES):

Fund balances, beginning -as restated
Fund balances, beginning ending

Variance with 
Final Budget

Positive
(Negaitve)

Budgeted Amounts

(7,608)$                  
(18,766)         

Transfers in 
Transfers out

Total other financing souces (uses)
Net change in fund balances

84                 
        (1,867)

(21,574) 

4,624            
(18,517)         
(43,676)         

280               
3,845            

(50,287) 
4,541 

(45,746) 

79,297 
(2,563) 

(7,771) 
6,511 
1,313 

73,278 
73,331 

- 
- 
- 

(54,115)$                

(32,541) 

(54,115) 

(136,860)                

See notes to budgetary comparison schedule. 

51 



52 

CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 

The following procedures are used to establish the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 

Budgetary Information 

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund and fire rescue special revenue fund on a basis consistent 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), except for encumbrances, 
which are reported as expenditures for budgetary purposes. A reconciliation of GAAP to the budgetary basis is shown 
below. In addition, the City prepares annual operating budgets for the enterprise funds. 

During the month of July each year, the City Manager submits to the City Commission a proposed operating budget 
for the fiscal year commencing October 1. This budget includes proposed expenditures as well as the expected means 
of financing them. The Commission holds public hearings and a final budget must be prepared and adopted no later than 
October 1. 

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function and department. The City Manager is authorized to transfer 
budgeted line items within a department classification; however, any revisions that alter the department totals must be 
approved by the City Commission. Therefore, the department level is the legal level of budgetary control. Budgeted 
amounts are as originally adopted or as amended. Individual type amendments were not material in relation to the 
original appropriations. 

Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental funds. All unencumbered appropriations lapse at year end are 
budgeted in the next fiscal year. 

Excess of Expenditure over Appropriations 

Expenditures exceeded the budget in the General fund for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017, at the following 
department level, which is the legally controlled level of appropriations: 

Budget Actual 
General Fund:

89,986$      96,797$        
192,907      266,185        
183,000      319,860        Others (136,860) 

Amount in Excess of 
Final Budget

City Management
Finance

(6,811)$  
(73,278) 
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CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 

Excess of Expenditure over Appropriations (continued) 

The over-expenditures resulted from the following: 

 City Management Unanticipated increase in health insurance and retirement cost
 Finance: Unanticipated cost for accounting and consulting services.
 Others: Unanticipated repairs and replacement of equipment.

Budget/GAAP Reconciliation 

There are no reconciling items between GAAP and Budget. 

Rest of page is intentionally left blank. 



This page is intentionally left blank. 



COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS 



CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BY FUND TYPE 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 

Capital Special Debt 
Projects Revenue Service 

Fund Fund Fund Total 

  21,213
21,213 -          -

$      
 21,213$         

3$            $       293,972 -$       $       293,975
-           -         - 

3   293,972

(3)  (272,759)
(3) (272,759)

 - 293,975

-  (272,762) 
-  (272,762)

-$         21,213$         -$       21,213$         

Deficit in cash and equity in pooled cash

ASSETS
Restricted cash

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Total liabilities and fund balances

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES 
Unassigned 

Total fund balances
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CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA 
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES NON-MAJOR 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BY FUND TYPE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 

Capital Special Debt 
Projects Revenue Service 

Fund Fund Fund Total 

Fines and Forfeitures -$       $           8,045 -$       $           8,045
-         16 16 

Misc          50,000 -  50,000
             8,061 - 

-         -         - 
-         -         
-         -         - 
-         - 

-         
             300

 - 7,761

- 7,761

$        
(3)  (280,520)
 (3) $      (272,759) -$       $      (272,762)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance, beginning
Fund balance, ending

Revenue

Expenditures
Current

Total revenues

Capital outlay
Total expenditures 

Public Safety
Culture and recreation 
Physical environment

(Deficiency) of revenue over expenditures

Interest 
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         50,000  -  58,061

         -
-

         50,000
         50,000

            300
         -

-
         -

-

            300

 -
         50,000

  50,300

 - (280,523)

 - 7,761

- 7,761



REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditor’s Report

The Governing Body 
City of Gretna, Florida  

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Gretna, Florida (the “City” as of 
and for the year ended September 30, 2017 , and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively 
comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 30, 2019. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses, we 
identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant 
deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the fo l lowing deficiencies 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be material weaknesses: 
2017-002, 2017-004, 2016-002  and 2016-003.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the 
following deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be significant 
deficiencies: 2017-001 and 2017-003.
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial 
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests did not disclose 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards.  

City of Gretna’s Response to Findings

The City’s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying schedule of findings 
and responses. The City’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.  

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any 
other purpose. 

Tallahassee, Florida 
April 30, 2019

57



City of Gretna, Florida 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017 

Section II: Financial Statement Findings- Current Year 

2017-001 Journal entries posted later than 15th of proceeding month. 
Criteria: Per the entity’s Accounting and Finance Manual, all journal entries must be inputted by the 15th 

of proceeding month. 

Condition and Context: Nine of sixty journal entries were inputted after the 15th of proceeding month. 
Cause: Management did not adhere to their policies for journal entries.  

Effect or Potential Effect: Late journal entries may result in wrong reporting. 

Recommendation: Management of City of Gretna should ensure that journal entries are posted in proper 
periods. 

Responsible Official’s Response: Management accepts the findings. Management will revisit its month 
end close practices to ensure that all journal entries are processed timely in accordance to the City’s 
Accounting and Finance Manual.   

Finding 2017-002: One credit card proceeds was not traced to the bank statement. 

Criteria: Per the entity’s Accounting and Finance Manual, monthly bank reconciliations should be done 
monthly and enable the users to trace the cash receipts including the credit card proceeds. 

Condition and Context: One of five credit card receipts tested couldn’t be traced to the bank statements. 

Cause: Management did not adhere to their policies for credit card proceeds reconciliation. 

Effect or Potential Effect: In the absence of proper credit card reconciliations, proceeds may not be 
properly recorded in the General Ledger and that bank reconciliations may not be intact. 

Recommendation: Management of City of Gretna should ensure proper supporting credit card proceeds 
reconciliations are maintained for all credit card transactions. 

Responsible Official’s Response: Management accepts the findings. Management will reinforce with the 
city’s accounting team the importance of attention to detail and refresh their understanding of the 
expectations required by the City’s Accounting and Finance Manual.  

Finding 2017-003: No purchase orders provided for certain cash disbursement selections. 

Criteria: As part of best practices, management should follow monitoring requirement of the Committee 
of Sponsoring Organizations (COSO) framework. The framework requires adequate control over the 
processing of transactions to prevent and detect misstatements. 

Condition and Context: Twenty-nine of sixty selections did not include a purchase order in the support 
documents provided by management. 

Cause: Management did not adhere to their policies for cash management. 

Effect or Potential Effect: Incurring of excessive costs, improper charges made to departments and 
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City of Gretna, Florida 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017 
unauthorized, unnecessary, or fraudulent purchases can result from failing to include purchase orders in 
cash disbursement processing. 

Recommendation: The management of the City of Gretna should ensure that purchase orders accompany 
each cash disbursement being processed by the city. 

Responsible Official’s Response: Management accepts the finding. There are financial transactions 
allowed by city policy that do not require purchase orders such as those expenditure made by purchasing 
card. Creating purchase orders in the city’s current financial management system double posting of the 
same financial transaction. Management agrees that the limited number of transactions that occurred in 
the year did not include purchase orders.   

Finding 2017-004: Missing documentation. 

Criteria: As part of best practices recommended by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations (COSO) 
framework, management should require adequate control over the processing of transactions to prevent 
and detect misstatements on a timely basis. 

Condition and Context: 
1. Long term debt

a.) Beginning balances don’t match the prior year’s schedules and audited financial statements. 

b.) Ending balances don’t match the trial balance and amortization schedules.  

c.) Revenue reports were not provided for Reserve Account/Sinking Fund for compliance testing. 

2. Fixed assets schedule
a.) Beginning balances doesn’t match the ending balances of the prior year’s audited financial 
statements.  

b) Includes footing errors. We could not verify the accuracy of the fixed asset schedule for the
year ended 2017.

Cause: Management did not adhere to accounting rules, COSO’s documentation standards, their 
accounting 
and finance policies and procedures for documentation. 

Effect or Potential Effect: Missing/insufficient documentation might result in a less than unmodified 
opinion. 
Recommendation: The City of Gretna should ensure proper accounting documentation. 

Responsible Official’s Response: Management accepts the findings. Management has concluded that in 
closing the prior year and opening this audited year that there were accounting errors that impacted the 
referenced schedule. Management will implement an additional review step in the closing and opening of 
each accounting year.  
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City of Gretna, Florida 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017 

Financial Statement Findings-Prior Year 

Finding 2016-002: Disbursement Controls 

Criteria: As part of best practices established by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of 
the Treadway Commission (COSO), Integrated Framework, management should follow 
established procedures when disbursing funds. The framework requires adequate control over the 
processing of transactions to prevent and detect misstatements on a timely basis. 

Condition and Context: For nineteen checks selected out of sixty-three management did not provide 
the supporting documentation as requested. Further, for four other samples the documents 
submitted showed that the controls were not working as intended by management. 

Cause: Management did not adhere to policies for cash disbursement. 

Effect or Potential Effect: Suppliers may be paid incorrect amounts. Failure to properly maintain 
records may also result in duplicate payments or vendors being paid for goods and services not 
supplied. 

Recommendation: The governing body and management of the City of Gretna should ensure that 
established procedures are followed in relations to cash disbursement. 

Responsible Official’s Response: Management accepts the finding. The City Manager has conducted a 
full review of the cash disbursement practices and implemented changes in the city’s daily and month end 
closing procedures.  

IC-2016-003 Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Criteria: Management must maintain a system of internal control over financial reporting 
as a formal system of checks and balances, monitored by management and the City 
Commission to ensure the financial statements and related reports produced by the City 
are free of material misstatement and significant errors. 

Condition and Context: The financial statements and related documents provided did not 
agree to the City's accounting records, contained a significant number of computation 
errors and formatting errors, and several areas were not updated at all. 

Cause: Management does not have a formal policy or internal control system 
related to financial reporting. 

Effect or Potential Effect: Management's noncompliance with developing a system of 
internal control related to financial reporting results in reporting errors and omissions 
that are significant to the readers of the financial statements.   

Recommendation: The City develop and implement formal policies and procedures 
related to internal control over financial reporting. 
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City of Gretna, Florida 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017 
Responsible Officials Response: Management accepts the finding and has made updates 
the City's accounting policy related to internal control over financial reporting. 
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Management Letter 

To the Mayor and Members of the City Commission 
City of Gretna, Florida 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Gretna, Florida, as of and for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2017, and have issued our report thereon dated April 30, 2019. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. 

Other Reporting Requirements 

We have issued our Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards and Independent Accountant's Report on an examination conducted in 
accordance with AICPA  Professional  Standards,  AT-C  Section  315, regarding compliance requirements in 
accordance with Chapter 10.550, Rules of the Auditor General. Disclosures in those reports and schedule, which 
are dated April 30, 2019, should be considered in conjunction with this management letter. 

Official Title and Legal Authority 

Section 10.554(1)(i)4., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that the name or official title and legal authority 
for the primary government and each component unit of the reporting entity be disclosed in this management 
letter, unless disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Such information is disclosed in Note 1 of the 
financial statements. 

Financial Condition and Management 

Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.a. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply appropriate procedures 
and communicate the results of our determination as to whether or not the City has met one or more of the 
conditions described in Section 218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and to identify the specific condition(s) met. In 
connection with our audit, we determined that the City did  not meet any of the conditions described in Section 
218.503(1), Florida Statutes. 
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Pursuant to Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.c. and 10.556(8), Rules of the Auditor General, we applied financial condition 
assessment procedures for the City. It is management's responsibility to monitor the City's financial condition, 
and our  financial  condition  assessment  was  based  in  part  on representations made by management and 
review of financial information provided by same. 

Section 10.554(1)(i)2., Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we communicate any recommendations to 
improve financial management. In connection with our audit, we did not have any such recommendations. 

Annual Financial Report 

Sections 10.554(1)(i)5.b. and 10.556(7), Rules of the Auditor General, require us to apply appropriate procedures 
and communicate the results of our determination as to whether the annual financial report for the City for the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 2017, filed with the Florida Department of Financial Services pursuant to 
Section 218.32(1)(a), Florida Statutes, is in agreement with the annual financial audit report for the fiscal year 
ended September 30, 2017. In connection with our audit, we determined that these two reports were in 
agreement. 

Additional Matters 

Section 10.554(1)(i)3., Rules of the Auditor General, requires us to communicate noncompliance with provisions 
of contracts or grant agreements, or abuse, that have occurred, or are likely to have occurred, that have an effect 
on the financial statements that is less than material but warrants the attention of those charged with governance. 
In connection with our audit, we did not note any such findings. 

Purpose of this Letter 

Our management letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Auditing Committee, 
members of the Florida Senate and the Florida House of Representatives, the Florida Auditor General, Federal 
and other granting agencies, the Board of Directors, and applicable management, and is not intended to be and 
should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Tallahassee, Florida 
April 30, 2019 
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CITY OF GRETNA, FLORIDA 
Management Letter 

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017 

This letter includes follow-up comments and suggestions with respect to matters that came to 
our attention in connection with our audit of the financial statements of the City of Gretna for 
the year ended September 30, 2017. These items were offered as constructive suggestions to 
be considered part of the ongoing process of modifying and improving the City’s practices 
and procedures. 

I. CURRENT YEAR  RECOMMENDATIONS

None.

II. STATUS OF PRIOR YEARS'  RECOMMENDATIONS

2014-01-ML      Implement  Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
      Treadway Commission (COSO)’s Internal Control Framework 

Comment and Recommendation 

The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) has 
updated its Internal Control—Integrated Framework (Framework) originally released in 
1992. The original framework has gained broad acceptance and is widely used around the 
world. It is recognized as a leading framework for designing, implementing, and conducting 
internal control and assessing the effectiveness of internal control. COSO believes the 
Framework will enable organizations to effectively and efficiently develop and maintain 
systems of internal control that can enhance the likelihood of achieving the entity’s 
objectives and adapt to changes in the business and operating environments. 

Federal Managers' Financial Integrity Act (FMFIA) requires that federal agency executives 
periodically review and annually report on the agency's internal control systems. FMFIA 
requires the Comptroller General to prescribe internal controls standards. These internal 
control standards, first issued in 1983, present the internal control standards for federal 
agencies for both program and financial management. 

On September 10, 2014 the Government Accountability Office (GAO) issued its revision of 
Standards for Internal Control in the Federal Government described as the “Green Book”, 
which was adopted from the Framework and is now required of federal financial managers. 

The Green Book may also be adopted by state, local, and quasi-governmental entities, as 
well as not-for-profit organizations, as a framework for an internal control system. 

This updated Framework is now considered “best practice” for designing, implementing, 
conducting and assessing internal controls. The American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants has issued guidance that can be used for the implementation of COSO (see 
attached) as well as the Government Finance Officers’ Association (GFOA) has issued a 
publication (available in “E-Book” as well as paper versions) designed to help understand 
and implement this frame work.  

We urged the City to consider adopting and implementing this COSO framework. 
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I. CURRENT YEAR  RECOMMENDATIONS (Continued)

2014-01-ML       Implement Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
 Treadway Commission (COSO’s) Internal Control Framework 

       (continued) 

Current Year Status 

The condition still exists. 

Management’s Response 

The City will consider adopting the updated 2014 COSO Framework and related Green 
Book as a guide for best practices on internal control environments. 

Rest of page is intentionally left blank. 
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Independent Accountant's Examination Report 

To the Mayor and Members of the City Commission 
City of Gretna, Florida 

We have examined the City of Gretna (the "City")'s compliance with requirements of Section 218.415, 
Florida Statutes during the year ended September 30, 2017. Management is responsible for the City's 
compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance 
based on our examination. 

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test  basis, 
evidence  about the City's  compliance  with  those  requirements  and  performing such other procedures 
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. Our examination does not provide a legal determination  on the City's  compliance 
with  specified requirements. 

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the aforementioned requirements for the 
year ended September 30, 2017. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and the state of Florida 
Auditor General and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified 
parties. 

Tallahassee, Florida 
April 30, 2019 
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